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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-06 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to cultural competency train ing; and to amend and reenact 
section 54-03.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cultural competency 
training for legislators. 

Minutes: Attachments: 1-7 

Chairman Poolman: Opened the hearing on SB 2337. 

Senator Marcellais, District 9: See Attachment #1 for testimony to explain and in support 
of the bill. 

(1 :25) Senator Meyer: Who would be teaching the classes? 

Senator Marcellais: I thought about that after I introduced the bill and it would probably be 
some Native American resources that would come in and teach. 

Chairman Poolman: Are you envisioning that this would be part of the new legislator 
training? 

Senator Marcellais: Yes, as part of orientation in December when we first come. Just like 
our computer training. It may be better to have a 5-hour training session so that each one of 
our tribes has an opportunity to talk about their nation. There are different cultures involved. 
We may want to amend that. 

(2:45) Senator Heckaman, District 23: See Attachment #2 for testimony in support of the 
bill. 

(6:30) Senator Vedaa: Do you know of other states that have this for their legislatures? 

Senator Heckaman: I do not know specifically on states. I have done a lot of research on 
organizations and corporations and that is one of the big things that they do. Most 
corporations in the rage of 50 to 100 workers and they are looking at cultural diversity issues. 
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Basically we work for 780,000 people, so we have a bigger group that we are responsible to 
than maybe even a major corporation. There are a lot of programs out there that focus on 
one to five hours. A lot of them are online and I am not saying that would be wrong. I think 
the National Conference of State Legislators would be able to help us with some ideas and 
formations on how to do that too and they are great resources for us. 

(8:10) Karen Ehrens, Resident: See Attachment #3 for testimony in support of the bill. 

(14:00) Carol Two Eagle, Resident: Testified in support of the bill. (14:00-19:30 
Commented on some statements that were made by legislators in the past that were 
offensive to Native Americans.) These types of comments could have been avoided if this 
kind of training were done. I often testify on the issues that are important to Natives and 
have not had some good experiences. This kind of training would have helped with these 
situations. We need that training. I would like for the committee to work very hard to get this 
bill passed out of committee. Senator Marcellais is very different from Dakota and Lakota 
culture and even within our own nation there are variances from one band to another. There 
are many differences from tribes, reservations, and even bands within each nation. Over the 
years there have been changes. There are many misconceptions and they keep breeding 
and we need to get rid of them and I think cultural competency training would eliminate much 
of that. That is why we educate our children and adults need it too. 

(21 :00) Waylon Hedegaard, North Dakota AFL-CIO: Testified in support of the bill. Our 
group represents a lot of the workers on pipe lines including the Dakota Access Pipeline, and • 
this has been a very strenuous situation and has caused a lot of stress within our organization 
and within our groups. There are many misconceptions on both sides of this issue and some 
of those misconceptions are just simply that. Some are bordering on racism and a few go 
way over the border on racism. I am a big believer in understanding and communication. 
There is so much about the heritages involved here that I did not know before this. I have 
been researching and trying to do my best to learn and I think that our state and the 
individuals involved would do nothing but good by trying to understand each other a little bit 
better. I stand fully in support. 

(22:31) Eagle Woman, Kandi Mossett: See Attachment #4 for testimony in support of the 
bill. 

(26:00) Respects the People Woman, Enrolled Member of Standing Rock Tribe: 
Testified in support of the bill. (Started in Native tongue.) For me to even say that I am an 
enrolled member is a form of oppression and the people that I get to visit with on a daily basis 
don't even know that we as Natives are required to carry enrollment cards to show that we 
are native. In light of the past few months, any form of education that we can do to bury these 
stereotypes would be a good thing. We have heard a lot of talk about mending relationships 
and a lot of talk about after the DAPL situation is done things have to be fixed and that they 
still live here and are from here. I can attest, in living here my whole life, that it has never 
been a good thing. I am not here to bring up any old wounds, but I want to make everyone 
aware that I don't know what rose colored glasses people are looking through to think that 
we have been this friendly state and that we have had these great relationships . It has never 
been like that and I know part of that reason is that there has not been that education out 
there to sit down and have conversations with one another. I think the leaders of our state 
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need to be educated on us as a people. I stand before you as a Dakota, and as wife, mother, 
sister, daughter. We all share the same values in those types of things. I think the more that 
we learn about one another; to teach these similarities but respect our differences, and come 
together to truly mend our relationships is a good thing. 

(29:15) Dennis Kooren, Resident: See Attachment #5 for testimony in support of the bill. 

(34:10) Brenda White Bull, Member of the Lakota Band of the Standing Rock Sioux 
Tribe: Testified in support of the bill. I spent 20 years in the Marine Corp. Throughout that 
process in the Marine Corp part of our training was culture sensitivity. We just got through 
with two major wars and we had to learn about Iraq and Afghanistan and learn their culture; 
perhaps even learn their language. If we can do that overseas, we can do that here. My 
grandfather is a Lakota code talker. We would not be here today if it was not for the Lakota, 
Navajo, and so on. Many tribes contributed to saving this country. In the school systems, in 
my junior year we started talking about our Native American history, and now, because we 
were taught more of the American history and very little of our own, they are starting when 
they are much younger. On religion, we talk about what is going on with the pipeline and why 
some of us are so passionate about what we do down there. It is about Grandmother Earth. 
I believe that we are fighting two different wars. We, as indigenous people, are fighting a 
spiritual battle and the government side are fighting another type of battle. So we are not 
connecting and we are not seeing eye to eye. Our fight is for our Grandmother Earth because 
from the Bible it says we came from the dust and we will go back to the dust. When we say 
that we come from Grandmother Earth and that we want to go back to her; we want to protect 
her. We are the protectors of her - that is one of our main points. The water of life is our first 
medicine and those are things that are passionate to us. You have to be aware and sensitive 
to those things. We have some of those Sheriff's and Deputies who are called to their duties, 
and if they were given culture sensitivity maybe these things would not have happened. They 
have no understanding. I have heard stories down there about several National Guardsmen 
and Sheriffs crying because they understood where we came from but they were given those 
orders. They have to feed famil ies just like we do and we understand that and we pray for 
them. This is a prime example going on right now as to why this bill is necessary. 

(38:40) Lisa Deville (Accomplishes Everything), Member of the Three Affiliated Tribes: 
Testified in support of the bill. My people are in the heart of the Bakken oil fields. Our people 
have been assimilated to western culture. To live the ways of the white. We have lost much 
of our identity because we have forgotten . (inaudible) Many of the bills that have come out 
of this session are self-serving. There are bills that overreact to temporary situations. We all 
need to have a better understanding of each other. Lack of understanding breeds fear. Fear 
breeds anger. When people act out in anger and fear we have reckless reactions. Having 
cultural competency training would help to have some sort of respect and understanding of 
each other's history and culture we would not have bills that suggest that people are allowed 
to run over protestors. (additional inaudible examples) We live in a state that claims to be 
proud of the Native history but then our people are treated with discrimination. (additional 
inaudible comments). 

(43:35) Tara Okpalaeke-Wood, North Dakota Resident: See Attachment #6 for testimony 
in support of the bill. 
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(46:30) Yuliya Manyakina, Ukrainian-Russian Immigrant, Resides and Employed on 
Standing Rock Reservation at Sitting Bull College: See Attachment #7 for testimony in 
support of the bill. 

(50:15) Ruth Buffalo, North Dakota Human Rights Coalition, MHA: Testified in support 
of the bill. I want to echo what everyone else has said. This is a very important endeavor to 
take. You have an opportunity to do something that would be equivalent to innovation, 
trendsetting, or trail blazing. It is very important that we listen to our constituents and that we 
do things in a good way. I a recent graduate of NDSU's master of public health program. I 
was also in the specialization of the concentration of American Indian public health. NDSU 
also has an American Indian public health certificate that focuses on cultural competency 
which is very needed. I am also a public health professional. (Referenced Purnell's Model for 
Cultural Competence that includes four levels of consciousness.) This model has been tried 
and tested and it has proven to work across different professions. It has worked in the health 
and education industry. It is meeting people where they are at. Everyone is at a different 
journey of learning and we never stop learning. This model and this bill will raise awareness 
of our own biases that we are not aware of. It is important as leaders because we could make 
decisions that are dangerous. Some benefits are that it will save us money in the long run. It 
is taking a proactive, preventive approach. It will foster relationships and sustainable 
relationships. We look to you, our lawmakers, to effectively represent all of our state's citizens 
to the best of your ability. There is significant benefit to this training. North Dakota legislators 
and elected officials will gain a stronger, enhanced positive foundation of knowledge and 
skills in which you can build upon your additional expertise. This will also help lawmakers 
support human and civil rights law, state and federal governments have a pivotal role in 
ensuring cultural competent services that reduce or eliminate violations of state and federal 
laws. This will again help our lawmakers understand and address long standing disparities 
and the status of people of all races, ethnicities, and cultural backgrounds. This bill would 
enhance your skills to become a more effective leader. It would help teach diplomacy and 
effective communication skills. These are essential skills for working with a variety of groups 
who may hold divers perspective. It would help to make sure that all people North Dakota 
are treated fairly. 

(54:32) Chairman Poolman: No testimony in opposition or neutral capacity. (Comments 
thanking all who testified and all of the unique perspectives). We are at a key time where we 
can start to see and understand on another. Closed the hearing on SB 2337. 

• 
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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-06 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to cultural competency training; and to amend and reenact 
section 54-03.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cultural competency 
training for legislators. 

Minutes: No Attachments 

Chairman Poolman: Opened SB 2337 for committee discussion. It does require 4 hours of 
cultural competency and then it does require that everybody; every commission, every board, 
every employee within six months of taking office or being appointed has to also complete at 
least 4 hours of cultural competency. 

Senator Vedaa: I do not feel this bill as written is going to have any life in the Senate floor 
at all. That is what I am thinking on this. 

Senator Meyer: Would there be any penalty if someone decided not to attend? 

Chairman Poolman: As written, there is no penalty. I just looked at our brief organizational 
session and we don't even take 4 hours to get through the entire executive budget. There is 
computer training and everything goes so quickly. It is hard to imagine a 4-hour session 
amidst all of that. It seems difficult but I do understand those who came before us feeling like 
we should have some training in terms of different cultures as well as how to deal with a wide 
range of people. 

Senator Bekkedahl: I have thought a lot about this and I have worked as a dentist with 
natives and I garnered a lot of knowledge about Native American culture. It was an open 
clinic and I saw 14 different tribes represented there, and not just the 5 we have represented 
in North Dakota currently. I am not real big on mandates typically. I do a lot of them in the 
military and they take a lot of time. I think the bill has great intentions. Is there a way for Scott 
Davis and the Indian Affairs commission to provide this type of training voluntarily to the 
assembly so that people can come in a few times during the session to get that? 
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Senator Marcellais: I think Scott Davis would be a lead on it but it would have to have other 
resources. It still needs to come down to the 5 nations providing because he is not familiar 
with all 5 nations either. He is with Standing Rock and Turtle Mountain because that is where 
he is enrolled at. 

Chairman Poolman: But he could probably be a facilitator of that and it would not be so 
rushed either. 

Senator Marcellais: He is the facilitator for a lot of different things with a limited staff. 

Senator Bekkedahl: Would you like me to pursue amending this with legislative council to 
bring some language back to the committee? 

Chairman Poolman: I think we could do all of it without legislation as long as the committee 
is in agreement. 

Senator Vedaa: Do the 5 nations ever have anything in memorial hall like informational stuff 
for the legislators? 

Senator Marcellais: Yes, we have up until this last session when they discontinued it. The 
tribal nations to the state. They did have artifacts and things like that as well as a meal in 
memorial hall. When they cancelled all this, there is no more communications or relationship 
with the tribes. In fact, the Tribal Chairwoman from Spirit Lake is no longer coming back to 
the capitol because she got escorted out of here because they thought she was a part of the 
pipeline protestors. She was in here with her granddaughter and got escorted out. If we had 
a foreign person come to the White House and they got escorted out, do you think they would 
come back. I don't think so. It is the same concept here. When I was Tribal Chairman I felt 
that was equivalent to the Governor of the state. We have the same programs on the 
reservation that the state government has that we have to provide to our people. I know that 
Chairwoman Pearson said that she will not come back to the capitol because she was 
embarrassed. That is not a good way to start good relations with the native people. 

Chairman Poolman: I think Governor Burgum is doing a good job and trying to reach out. 

Senator Marcellais: Personally, I do not think this pipeline thing would have gone that far if 
the Governor would have gone down and visited with the tribe before it all started. When we 
had our special session I went down to the tee-pee and visited with them and they gave me 
literature and they wanted all legislators to go down and see what they were here for before 
they moved out to Standing Rock but nobody went out there. I still say it was a breakdown in 
communications. It goes both ways. I am not just saying natives. I think the legislators need 
to know what the native culture is and I think the natives need to know what the state 
government is. It is a misunderstanding between the two. I have been on both sides. I was 
asked to put this bill in by two Bismarck residents but I was in Belcourt with the funeral of the 
Deputy Sheriff so the bill was given to Senator Heckaman. One of the individuals that. 
requested it was Ruth Buffalo that ran for Insurance Commissioner. 
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Chairman Poelman: I think the 4 hours would be difficult because I think about all of the 
things that I serve on and I am wondering if I have to go through that 4 hours every time. I 
would probably have had to have gone 8 or 9 times by now. 

Senator Marcellais: After the way my flag bill went, I do not think this is going to pass the 
floor either. 

Chairman Poelman: I am so supportive of the intent behind it. The idea that we need to 
understand one another and try to work together regardless of culture. Trying to understand 
one another no matter what area you are from. I think we all have different experiences and 
different perspectives. 

Senator Bekkedahl: I think that procedurally, I kind of look at this as being something we 
could do with us and the Indian Affairs office. It may mean 5 opportunities during the session 
for a 1-hour assembly. For those that are able to attend on a volunteer basis and each hour 
a different tribe comes in. If you break it into 1-hour segments I think it works better. 

Chairman Poelman: I think it would be a great idea. 

Senator Bekkedahl: I do not care if that is in this piece of legislation, but I would like to see 
the discussion occur. 

Senator Vedaa: I have noticed that there have been some bills that have come through and 
it was completely turned into a study. I don't know. I sat in here with every one and you could 
tell that they are very passionate about that and the five of us are the only ones that get to 
see that. It is hard to explain that to everyone. I like what Senator Bekkedahl says and I think 
that is a great idea, however, how do we get that 'across to the people that were here? That 
we truly want to do something about it without just killing the bill. 

Senator Marcellais: I know that Senator Vedaa is a freshman, but there is either do not pass 
or pass. A study falls in the middle of that. It is not mandatory to do the study. It goes to 
legislative management and they decide what is going to be studied and what is not and which 
interim committee gets it. This would probably go to the Tribal State Relations Interim 
Committee. A lot of times they are not selected. I had bills last session and every one of them 
turned into a study but none of them got studied. It is just a nice way to say do not pass. 

Chairman Poelman: I know that you are giving us a very practical explanation, but do you 
think that it might be a little bit different this go around considering that we have exposed 
difficulties that maybe we did not want to acknowledge we there before? And, maybe it would 
get picked up considering these events. Would you mind if I have Senator Vedaa get 
amendments to turn it into a study? (Senator Vedaa indicate he would do that.) 
Closed the discussion on SB 2337 . 
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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-06 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to cultural competency training; and to amend and reenact section 
54-03.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cultural competency training for 
legislators. 

Minutes: nts: 1 

Chairman Poolman: Opened SB 2337 for committee discussion. Senator Vedaa worked 
with legislative council to come up with an amendment. We talked yesterday about changing 
this into a study. We talked about the 4 hours being difficult to fit in and kind of an onerous 
requirement of every commission, board, and state employee. The idea that maybe we could 
work without legislation with the office of Indian Affairs to maybe get some lunch programs 
and things like that that don't necessarily need legislation and take a look at this over the 
interim to see how we can incorporate more cultural competency for all of our employees. 

Senator Vedaa: See Attachment #1 for amendments proposed to committee. 

Senator Bekkedahl: I am assuming that the way that the legislative management study is 
worded that it is inherent that the study itself would probably involve testimony from the Indian 
Affairs Commission, is that correct? It doesn't need to be in here. Studies can bring in anyone 
they want to can't they? 

Chairman Poolman: No I do not think we need to put that in there. Even in addition to the 
study, I am planning to walk down to Scott Davis's office and have a conversation to look at 
what we can do before the end of the session to do something over lunch and get started 
with some of these idea. 

Senator Vedaa: Moved Amendment 17.1002.01001. 

• Senator Bekkedahl: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent. 

Motion Carried. 
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Senator Bekkedahl: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Vedaa: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Vedaa will carry the bill. 

• 



17.1002.01001 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Vedaa 

February 10, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2337 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of cultural competency training for legislators, state 
employees, and elected and appointed officials. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. CULTURAL COMPETENCY- LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT 
STUDY. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying the need for cultural competency training for all state legislators, elected and 
appointed state officers, members of appointive state boards, bureaus, and 
commissions, and employees of all state officers to provide the background knowledge 
and skills necessary to respond to and work with the diverse populations in the state, 
including native Americans. The legislative management shall report its findings and 
recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.1002.01001 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_28_001 
Carrier: Vedaa 

Insert LC: 17.1002.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2337: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Poolman, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2337 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of cultural competency training for legislators, state 
employees, and elected and appointed officials. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. CULTURAL COMPETENCY - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT 
STUDY. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying the need for cultural competency training for all state legislators, elected 
and appointed state officers, members of appointive state boards, bureaus, and 
commissions, and employees of all state officers to provide the background 
knowledge and skills necessary to respond to and work with the diverse populations 
in the state, including native Americans. The legislative management shall report its 
find ings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement 
the recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_28_001 
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Testimony on SB 2337 
February 2, 2017 

Chairperson Poolman, members of the Government Veterans 
Affairs committee, my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator for 
District 9 Rolette County. 

SB 2337 is a bill that would provide four hours of cultural 
competency training to legislators during the orientation every 
two years. 

This would assist legislators an opportunity to gain knowledge 
and skills necessary to respond and work with the diverse 
populations in the state, including the Native Americans with a 
population of 31 ,239 about 4.9°/o of the total population of North 
Dakota they contribute over $57 .5 million annually in taxes. This 
does not include the hundreds of millions our Nations share with 
the State of North Dakota in oil/gas taxes. 

It is time to create a new relationship between the State of North 
Dakota and our five Native American Tribal nations. 

Chairman, members of the committee on behalf of the North 
Dakota Native American Nations, I would ask a DO PASS on SB 
2337. I will try and answer any questions. 



SB 2337 

SENATOR JOAN HECKAMAN 

Chairman and members of the Government and Veterans Affairs 

Committee: 

I am Senator Joan Heckaman from District 23 and I am here in support 

of SB 2337. 

It is time for us as legislators to set the tone across this great state that 

all cultures and ethnicities play an important role in the future of our 

state. 

The North Dakota Legislature requires that all teachers licensed in this 

state take a culture class. Now it is time for us to follow and do the 

same. 

What can we gain by taking a culture class? 

1. The class will enable us to embrace and expand our 

understanding of other cultures as we become a more diverse 

state. 

2. It will refute some of the stereotypes or thoughts we have about 

other cultures. Not all Scandinavians love lutefisk. 

3. With understanding comes trust. The 780,000 residents of this 

state need to know they have legislators who feel the needs and 

work for the rights of every resident. 



4. An understanding of cultural differences lends itself to an • 

acceptance of why different cultures have different ways of doing 
things. 

5. It will help us work through attitudes by looking at the role 

condemnation, discrimination, tolerance, acceptance, and 

affirmation play in pieces of legislation we bring forward for 
consideration. 

Are we willing to learn more, accept more, fear less, and work harder to 
make everyone feel welcome? 

In the paraphrased words of James Banks, our challenge is to establish 

an authentic unum (Out of many, one) that creates moral, civic, and 

just communities in which citizens from diverse racial, ethnic, and 

cultural communities will participate and to which they will have 
allegiance. 

We can always do better and this bill is a way to start. I am ready, are 
you? 
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SB 2337: Cultural Competence 

Testimony in Support of SB 233 7 

February 2, 2017 

Chair Poolman and members of the Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee, I 
am Karen Ehrens from Bismarck and am here today as a private citizen, health and 
nutrition consultant, and Registered Dietitian. I support education in cultural competency 
for those who serve the public. 

What is cultural competency? The National Center for Cultural Competence offers this 
definition: 

"Cultural competence requires that organizations: 

• have a defined set of values and principles, and demonstrate behaviors, attitudes, policies 
and structures that enable them to work effectively cross-culturally. 

• have the capacity to (1) value diversity, (2) conduct self-assessment, (3) manage the 
dynamics of difference, ( 4) acquire and institutionalize cultural knowledge and (5) adapt 
to diversity and the cultural contexts of the communities they serve. 

• incorporate the above in all aspects of policy making, administration, practice, service 
delivery and involve systematically consumers, key stakeholders and communities." ... 

• "Systems and organizations must sanction, and in some cases mandate the incorporation 
of cultural knowledge into policy making, infrastructure and practice. 

• Cultural competence embraces the principles of equal access and non-discriminatory 
practices in service delivery."1 

Cultural competence starts with respect, that we are respectful of and responsive to the 
beliefs, practices and culture of the people with whom we work2. When we are culturally 
competent, we can improve communication and trust. 

My training in cultural competence started as a student in foreign language, studying 
French at Minot High School. It really began in the dietetics program at NDSU and 
continued into my internship at a VA Medical Center. Whether or not health professionals 
are culturally competent can make the difference in life or death for the people we serve. 
Teachers and social workers also have some requirements for training in cultural 
competence. And wouldn't you agree that legislators also make decisions that impact the 
health, opportunities and even life and death for your constituents and all the people who 
live here in North Dakota? 

My training continued over the past 15 years under the guidance of Dr. Terry Dwelle, who 
recently retired as our state health officer. Dr. Dwelle offered classes over noon hours for 
employees and other interested persons in community engagement and cultural 
competence. He led by example and helped me and employees in the department become 
aware of and work toward understanding the reasons behind people's behaviors and to 
listen and learn from them in how to address community problems. 

I have learned through working alongside, visiting, attending workshops, and eating 
together with friends from tribal nations and in visiting schools in every tribal nation in 
the state when I worked as an administrator in the Department of Public Instruction . 
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As I look back, I recognize that I have had opportunities and privileges that many others 
in the state have not It used to be that a person could grow up in North Dakota and might 
rarely see someone with skin of different shades, heard a language other than English, or 
tasted food with new and different herbs and spices. It is still true that people can grow 
up without the opportunity to get to know people who worship differently, have different 
physical or mental abilities, have different education or income levels, or are from 
different cultures. 

North Dakota is changing and becoming more diverse. According to the North Dakota 
Legislative Assembly Then. .. and Now! page3, in 1891, the majority oflegislators were born 
in Norway (15). In 1951, the majority oflegislators were farmers (98). In 2013, only 22 
legislators were farmers and several were business people or business owners. 
According to the U.S. Census Bureau, in 2015, almost 10 percent of people described 
themselves as American Indian, Black, Hispanic or Asian.4 

But one thing has not changed, and that is there were and still are people who lived here 
before any settlers arrived, our original North Dakotans, Native American people. 

If you are not in one of the medical or helping or teaching professions, you might not have 
had the opportunity for learning about cultural competency or even had the necessity to 
use it I firmly believe that my training and informal learning in cultural competency and 
community engagement have helped me do a better job in working with and for people 
across the state to improve health and reduce hunger. 

How does this play out in what we do? In many ways: reaching out to people who will be 
most impacted by a grant application or a change in law; asking people from diverse 
backgrounds to be part of a board or a committee; deliberately trying to include people 
who are different than you and me. 

I think that most everyone can benefit and improve in providing service by learning about 
and practicing working with people of other backgrounds and cultures; it doesn't always 
come naturally. So making training available to legislators and others throughout our 
state government can only help to increase trust and to improve the decisions that are 
made by this body. 

Now some in this body might not like the word, "require" but there are alternatives. There 
is leadership who can make the opportunities possible. Incentives for participation might 
also be considered to ensure that we reach a minimum level of cultural competence. 

We have this great opportunity here in North Dakota to be sure that public servants can 
do our best in serving the public by understanding the people we serve. 

We can do better for all North Dakotans. 2337 can be the start 

1. h ttps: //nccc.georgetown.ed u /foundations/frameworks.html #ccdefini ti on 

2. National Institutes of Health 

3. http://www.legis.nd.gov/legislativehistory 

4. http://www.census.gov/guickfacts/table/PST045215 /38 



Written Testimony in Support of Senate Bill No. 2337 
Submitted February 2, 2017 
By Kandi Mossett -Enrolled Citizen - Mandan, Hidatsa, Arikara Nations of North Dakota 

(Introduction in Hidatsa) - Hello Relatives, my name is Eagle Woman, my English name 
is Kandi Mossett and I am an enrolled citizen of the Mandan, Hidatsa, Arikara Nations of 
North Dakota. I'm here today in support of Senate Bill 2337 and can't stress enough the 
importance and necessity of this bill, especially in light of all we've seen in regards to the 
Dakota Access Pipeline and the resistance to it at Standing Rock. Had officers who were 
stationed at Standing Rock undergone a cultural competency training prior to being sent 
there they would likely not have jumped to the conclusion that water protectors had pipe 
bombs when they overheard them talking about loading their pipes. The water protectors 
were, of course, talking about their ceremonial pipes, or canupas, and were referring to 
loading them with tobacco in preparation for prayer and ceremony. Being in a tense, 
standoff situation is the last place that anyone, least of all law enforcement, should 
commit such a faux pau. 

But I digress, the Standing Rock Reservation is just one of the many represented in our 
state. When questioned about the number of tribes in North Dakota most people will say 
there are four and while four is considered by many of our tribes to be a sacred number it 
is not how many tribes are represented in our state. Perhaps it's easier to start with the 
number of reservations we have in North Dakota. We have the Standing Rock, Fort 
Berthold, Spirit Lake, Turtle Mountain, Sisseton-Wahpeton Oyate of the Lake Traverse 
Reservations as well as the Trenton Indian Service area. These collectively represent the 
Dakota, Lakota, Nakata, Ojibwe, Chippewa, Cree, Metis, Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara 
Nations. Each of those nations has their own histories, ceremonies, social practices and 
languages. 

Speaking of languages, the name of our state "Dakota" was derived from a Lakota term 
meaning friend or ally and the North Dakota tourism department is eager to extend the 
hand of friendship and hospitality to our out of state visitors when welcoming them here 
so naturally it would make sense that our appointive state officers would be just as eager 
to understand the diverse populations whom they serve within our state as well. 

Additionally, in terms of population it's critical to this conversation that we understand 
that North Dakota is rather unique in that it is among the only top 5 states in the entire 
country whose population is made up of more than 5% American Indian/Alaskan Natives 
thereby making it almost crucial that the officers in these states have a better 
understanding of the diverse population they serve. 

Now don' t get me wrong, this bill is not being introduced to say that we expect all 
elective and appointive state officers to know every single thing there is to know about 
each of the tribes represented in North Dakota. We are simply saying that if they can 
learn this much about the states tribes in just 3 minutes, imagine how much they could 
learn in a 4 hour cultural competency training, and just how far that training could go in 
providing a greater understanding of the diverse populations they are servmg m our 
beautiful state of North Dakota. Mod-zi-gidads. Thank you! 



Senate Bill No. 2337 

As a degreed Geographer from NDSU specializing in Cultural Geography, I have long lamented 
the fact that most Americans are very weak in their understanding of Geography and Culture 
compared to most Europeans and Asians. 

This bill breathes fresh air into this very important curriculum. It will give a short targeted course of 
study for all legislators to help them understand the diverse cultural groups in our state to better 
serve all citizens of ND. 

As a Cultural Geographer I cover the interacting dynamics of people and land. The effect each 
has on the other and the resulting cultures that arise from it. I can give you 2 examples long 
present in ND. 

The first is the German Russian Culture of which I am part of. 
Monsigner George P. Aberles book " From the Steppes to the Prairies" explains how and why the 
German Russian refugees chose central and western ND to settle. Everything about this area 
reminded them of their old home in Russia that they had been forced to vacate. (Even the 
weather) 

Indigenous cultures from around the world have a very strong physical and Spiritual connection to 
the land that surrounds them. My main field of study The Asmat of New Guinea give testament to 
that. Asmat is the name of both the people and the land, it means true human. Their spirituality 
and culture is tied directly into the land they occupy. I remember seeing in one of my Uncles 
churches a carving of the world (Asmat) being held up by the Asmat. They give balance to the 
world. Very powerful statement. Much of the same can be held true for Indigenous Dakotans. 
As outsiders it is hard for us to understand their ties to the land. Like our farmers the earth gives 
them life. 

If done right this 4 hour cultural exploration may just turn out to be one of the most enjoyable 
aspects of becoming a legislator. It will literally breath life into you. 



NOLA, S GVA - Winings, Cari 

Subject: 

Tara Okpalaeke-Wood <tazgirlii@hotmail.com> 
Thursday, February 02, 2017 11:14 AM 
NOLA, S GVA - Winings, Cari 
My Testimony 

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they 
are safe. 

Madam Chair and committee members, my name is Tara Okpalaeke-Wood. I have been a resident of this fine 
state of North Dakota for 12 years. In honor of Black History Month I plead my case for cultural competency 
training. 
I started out in this state thinking like it was like my home state of Minnesota. All I heard what's that this notion 
of North Dakota nice just like it's counterpart Minnesota. I was wrong. North Dakota is nothing like Minnesota. 
If you are a minority in Minnesota very few people care. All most people care about is how you act and how 
you treat others. In North Dakota, that is vastly diffrent. Some indviduals that I encounter on a day to day basis 
are very outspopken on thier dislike of people of color. I hear and read this day in and day out. I am here today 
to urge you to vote yes to cultural compancy training for the state legislsture. I feel that it would give some 
knowlege of how other people live on a day to day basis. 
We ALL want our voices heard even the minorites in our state. All I ask of our legislatures is to follow in Dr. 
Martian Luther King Jr. and not judge people by the color of their skin but by the content of their character. 
Thank You. 

a Okpalaeke-Wood 
strict 30 

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy Tablet 
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North Dakota is one of just a handful of states that have more than five percent American Indian and 
Alaska Native (AIAN) population. Ahead of North Dakota are Alaska at 12.9%, New Mexico at 9.3%, 
Oklahoma at 7 .8%, and Montana at 6.5%. 

Not providing this kind a~ t~~lators is not recognizing thatX·state is different, and that 
there is a critical need for this kind of training, as there is a serious lack of compassion and understanding of 
Native American issues throughout ND and even worse so a lack of a desire to understand N.A issues. How can we 
rely on our legislators knowing that they have no interest in supporting a big population of their constituents? 

Most fields and professions domestically and internationally relevant to interacting with people require these kinds of 
trainings - healthcare, education, social work, so why shouldn't the political field require this? 
~ 

As a resident of ND, an administrator and educator I want to maintain the highest standards for our elected officials. I 
want to be able to say "Hey I live in North Dakota and I am proud that these legislators are taking steps towards 
mutual understanding and communication" As legislators you have the power to foster collaboration between 
different populations within your state and to fulfill the needs of those populations. But you can't do so before you 
understand those needs, beliefs and behaviors. 

iya Manyakina 
ichakini Owayawa Project Director 

Sitting Bull College 
9299 Hwy 24 
Fort Yates, ND 58538 
Ph: 701-854-8056 

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?viewmodel=ReadMessageltem&ltemlD=AAMkAGl3YjViM2Q1LTY2YTEtNDU5My1iOGVjLWUONGM1MTVjN2RINwBGA .. 1/1 



• 

• 

• 

17.1002.01001 
Title. 

c?--10- VI 
Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Vedaa 

February 9, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2337 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of cultural competency training for legislators and 
elected officials. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2017-18 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the need for cultural 
competency training for all state legislators, elected and appointed state officers, 
members of appointive state boards, bureaus, and commissions, and employees of all 
state officers to provide the background knowledge and skills necessary to respond to 
and work with the diverse populations in the state, including native Americans. The 
legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with 
any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative 
assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.1002.01001 


